
 

 
 

Notice of meeting of  
 

Shadow Executive 
 
To: Councillors Scott (Chair), Fraser, Gunnell, Horton, King, 

Looker, Merrett, Potter and Simpson-Laing 
 

Date: Wednesday, 12 December 2007 
 

Time: 3.15 pm 
 

Venue: The Guildhall, York 
 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. Declarations of Interest   
 

At this point, Members are asked to declare any personal or 
prejudicial interests they may have in the business on this agenda. 
 

2. Exclusion of Press and Public   
 

To consider excluding the public and press from the meeting during 
consideration of any exempt information as detailed on the agenda 
for the Executive meeting to be held on 18 December 2007, under 
Schedule 12A to Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972, 
as amended by the Local Government (Access to information) 
(Variation) Order 2006. 
 

3. Minutes  (Pages 1 - 6) 
 

To approve and sign the minutes of the Shadow Executive meeting 
held on 28 November 2007. 
 

4. Public Participation   
 

At this point in the meeting members of the public who have 
registered their wish to speak regarding an item on the agenda or 
an issue within the Shadow Executive’s remit can do so. The 
deadline for registering is Tuesday 11 December 2007, at 5.00 pm. 
 



 

5. Executive Meeting on 18 December 2007 - Calling-in   
 

To consider the items on the agenda for the Executive meeting to 
be held on 18 December 2007, and to take a decision on whether 
to call-in any of these items. 
 
Please note that the reports relating to these items will be 
published on the Council’s website on Friday 7 December 2207. 
The website address is www.york.gov.uk  Copies of the Executive 
agenda and reports are also available for viewing at public libraries 
in York and can be obtained by telephoning Democracy Support 
Group on York (01904) 551088. 
 

6. Any Other Matters which the Chair decides are urgent under 
the Local Government Act 1972.   
 

Democracy Officer:  
 
Name: Tracy Johnson 
Contact details: 

• Telephone – (01904) 551031 

• E-mail – tracy.johnson@york.gov.uk 
 
 
 

For more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democracy Officer responsible for servicing this meeting: 
 

• Registering to speak 

• Business of the meeting 

• Any special arrangements 

• Copies of reports 
 
Contact details are set out above.  

 
 



About City of York Council Meetings 
 

Would you like to speak at this meeting? 
If you would, you will need to: 

• register by contacting the Democracy Officer (whose name and contact 
details can be found on the agenda for the meeting) no later than 5.00 
pm on the last working day before the meeting; 

• ensure that what you want to say speak relates to an item of business on 
the agenda or an issue which the committee has power to consider (speak 
to the Democracy Officer for advice on this); 

• find out about the rules for public speaking from the Democracy Officer. 
A leaflet on public participation is available on the Council’s website or 
from Democratic Services by telephoning York (01904) 551088 
 
Further information about what’s being discussed at this meeting 
All the reports which Members will be considering are available for viewing 
online on the Council’s website.  Alternatively, copies of individual reports or the 
full agenda are available from Democratic Services.  Contact the Democracy 
Officer whose name and contact details are given on the agenda for the 
meeting. Please note a small charge may be made for full copies of the 
agenda requested to cover administration costs. 
 
Access Arrangements 
We will make every effort to make the meeting accessible to you.  The meeting 
will usually be held in a wheelchair accessible venue with an induction hearing 
loop.  We can provide the agenda or reports in large print, electronically 
(computer disk or by email), in Braille or on audio tape.  Some formats will take 
longer than others so please give as much notice as possible (at least 48 hours 
for Braille or audio tape).   
 
If you have any further access requirements such as parking close-by or a sign 
language interpreter then please let us know.  Contact the Democracy Officer 
whose name and contact details are given on the order of business for the 
meeting. 
 
Every effort will also be made to make information available in another 
language, either by providing translated information or an interpreter providing 
sufficient advance notice is given.  Telephone York (01904) 551550 for this 
service. 

 



 
Holding the Executive to Account 
The majority of councillors are not appointed to the Executive (38 out of 47).  
Any 3 non-Executive councillors can ‘call-in’ an item of business from a 
published Executive (or Executive Member Advisory Panel (EMAP)) agenda. 
The Executive will still discuss the ‘called in’ business on the published date 
and will set out its views for consideration by a specially convened Scrutiny 
Management Committee (SMC).  That SMC meeting will then make its 
recommendations to the next scheduled Executive meeting in the following 
week, where a final decision on the ‘called-in’ business will be made.  
 
Scrutiny Committees 
The purpose of all scrutiny and ad-hoc scrutiny committees appointed by the 
Council is to:  

• Monitor the performance and effectiveness of services; 

• Review existing policies and assist in the development of new ones, as 
necessary; and 

• Monitor best value continuous service improvement plans 
 
Who Gets Agenda and Reports for our Meetings?  

• Councillors get copies of all agenda and reports for the committees to 
which they are appointed by the Council; 

• Relevant Council Officers get copies of relevant agenda and reports for 
the committees which they report to;  

• Public libraries get copies of all public agenda/reports.  
 



City of York Council Committee Minutes

MEETING SHADOW EXECUTIVE 

DATE 28 NOVEMBER 2007 

PRESENT COUNCILLORS SCOTT (CHAIR), FRASER, 
GUNNELL, HORTON, KING, LOOKER, POTTER 
AND SIMPSON-LAING 

APOLOGIES COUNCILLOR MERRETT 

102. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

Members were invited to declare at this point in the meeting any personal 
or prejudicial interests they might have in the business on the agenda.  

Cllr Potter declared a personal non prejudicial interest in Executive Agenda 
Item 8 (Minute 109 refers) as chair of the trustees of York Wheels. 

103. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  

RESOLVED: That the press and public be excluded from the meeting 
during consideration of: 

• Exempt Minute 107 in the minutes of the Executive 
meeting held on 20 November 2007 (Executive Agenda 
Item 3) 

• Annex A to Executive Agenda Item 11 (Chief Officer 
Search and Selection Contract) 

on the grounds that they contain information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of particular persons, which is 
classed as exempt under paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A to 
Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as revised 
by the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) 
Order 2006). 

104. MINUTES  

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the last meeting held on 14 
November 2007 be approved and signed as a 
correct record. 

105. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  

It was reported that there had been no registrations to speak under the 
Council’s Public Participation scheme. 

106. EXECUTIVE FORWARD PLAN  

The Shadow Executive made the following comments on the Forward Plan 
at page 13 of the papers circulated for the Executive meeting to be held on 
4 December 2007: 

Agenda Item 3Page 1



The Shadow Executive: 

• agreed to provisionally request officers for the following items on the 
Executive Forward Plan: 

Executive on 18 December 

� Progress Update: Draft Carbon Management Implementation 
Plan and progress on Climate Change Strategy for the City 

� City Centre Partnership 
� Thin Client Management Arrangements  
� Review Report – Housing (affordable and social)  
� Energy and Water Management – Policy & Practice/ 

Sustainability in Design 

Executive on 15 January 

� Review Report – Finding a consensus on the way forward for 
the City  

� Easy@York Phase 2 Report

107. MINUTES OF THE SOCIAL INCLUSION WORKING GROUP AND THE 

YOUNG PEOPLE'S WORKING GROUP  

The Shadow Executive considered a report which was listed as item 6 on 
the agenda for the Executive meeting on 4 December 2007, at page 17. 
The report presented the minutes of recent meetings of the Social 
Inclusion Working Group and the Young People’s Working Group and 
asked Members to consider the advice given by the Working Groups in 
their capacity as advisory bodies to the Executive. 
  
Having discussed the issues set out in the report, the following comments 
were agreed: 
  
The Shadow Executive: 

• hoped that the minutes would go before the Executive on a timely 
basis; 

• agreed that a system needed to be devised whereby the minutes 
could be submitted to the Executive without having to wait for the 
next quarterly meeting whilst allowing groups to comment on them; 

• expressed concerns that the Disabled People’s Forum was facing 
difficulties and encouraged the Executive and the Executive 
Member for Youth and Social Inclusion to provide additional help 
and support to the Forum. 

RESOLVED: (i) That the Executive be asked to take the above 
comments into account when considering this item. 

  
(ii) That the item not be called in. 

Page 2



108. LORD MAYORALTY 2008/09  

The Shadow Executive considered a report which was listed as item 7 on 
the agenda for the Executive meeting on 4 December 2007, at page 31.  
The report asked the Executive to consider which of the political groups 
should be invited to appoint the Lord Mayor for the Municipal Year 2008/09 
and proposed an amendment to the current nomination scheme. 
  
Having discussed the issues set out in the report, the following comments 
were agreed: 
  
The Shadow Executive: 

• supported Option 1  

• asked for clarification as to whether the points allocated to the 
Conservatives and the Liberal Democrats were correct and that the 
applicable date for calculation was Annual Council. 

RESOLVED: (i) That the Executive be asked to take the above 
comments into account when considering this item. 

  
(ii) That the item not be called in. 

109. TRANSFORMATION OF TRANSPORT SERVICES  

The Shadow Executive considered a report which was listed as item 8 on 
the agenda for the Executive meeting on 4 December 2007, at page 35.  
The report (referred to on the Forward Plan as “Kendric Ash Review 
Update”) provided an update on progress to date on the transformation 
partnership to improve the Council’s internal transport provision, improve 
service quality and make significant efficiency savings. 
  
Having discussed the issues set out in the report and questioned officers 
present at the meeting, the following comments were agreed: 
  
The Shadow Executive: 

• welcomed the report; 

• encouraged officers to provide safer buses for travel to and from 
school and home which would be introduced as soon as possible 
and expanded to all primary and secondary schools. 

RESOLVED: (i) That the Executive be asked to take the above 
comments into account when considering this item. 

  
(ii) That the item not be called in. 

110. REPORT OF THE FUTURE YORK GROUP  

The Shadow Executive considered a report which was listed as item 9 on 
the agenda for the Executive meeting on 4 December 2007, at page 47.  
The report sought to brief the Executive on consultation undertaken 
following receipt of the Future York Group Report and made 

Page 3



recommendations for the Council, working in partnership with others, to 
adopt in response to the Report. 
  
Having discussed the issues set out in the report and questioned officers 
present at the meeting, the following comments were agreed: 
  
The Shadow Executive: 

• would be sending detailed comments to the Executive. 

RESOLVED: (i) That the Executive be asked to take the above 
comments into account when considering this item. 

  
(ii) That the item not be called in. 

111. REDUCING THE MAINTENANCE BACKLOG  

The Shadow Executive considered a report which was listed as item 10 on 
the agenda for the Executive meeting on 4 December 2007, at page 97. 
The report sought Member’s approval of a proposed strategy for using the 
limited revenue and capital resources available to deal with the substantial 
repair and maintenance backlog of the Council’s corporate land, buildings 
and highways, by basing decisions on future investment on the need and 
viability of the asset. 
  
Having discussed the issues set out in the report and questioned officers 
present at the meeting, the following comments were agreed: 
  
The Shadow Executive: 

• welcomed the report and recommended Option A with the 
caveats: 
� there are historic buildings in the Council’s ownership and 

there is a need to ensure that they are properly maintained 
� the Council should also seek to be increasing sustainability 

and reducing the eco footprint of the buildings as part of the 
strategy. 

RESOLVED: (i) That the Executive be asked to take the above 
comments into account when considering this item. 

  
(ii) That the item not be called in. 

112. CHIEF OFFICER SEARCH AND SELECTION CONTRACT  

The Shadow Executive considered a report which was listed as item 11 on 
the agenda for the Executive meeting on 4 December 2007, at page 117. 
The report asked the Executive to decide on the award of the corporate 
contract for Chief Officer search and selection following a full tendering 
process, as Officer’s recommendations are not to award the lowest cost 
supplier. 
  
Having discussed the issues set out in the report, the following comments 
were agreed: 
  

Page 4



The Shadow Executive: 

• recommended Option B; 

• agreed that a protocol needed to be established as to when such 
consultants should be used. 

RESOLVED: (i) That the Executive be asked to take the above 
comments into account when considering this item. 

  
(ii) That the item not be called in. 

113. THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT WHITE PAPER ‘STRONG & 

PROSPEROUS COMMUNITIES’ AND THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND 

PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT IN HEALTH ACT 2007  

Members received a report which provided a briefing on the Local 
Government White paper in relation to the possibilities for increasing 
localisation and development of services into communities at a local ward 
level with appropriate monitoring and reporting to local communities; draft 
Neighbourhood Charters and action plans and citywide consultation and 
engagement provisions needed to ensure delivery meets local 
expectations. 

Members questioned officers present at the meeting and discussed the 
resource implications of implementing the Act, awareness in other 
directorates of the Act, public consultation, and councillor training on 
Councillor Call for Action.  

RESOLVED:  That the contents of the report be noted.

REASON:  To inform the Shadow Executive. 

Cllr D Scott, Chair 
[The meeting started at 3.15 pm and finished at 4.30 pm]. 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6


	Agenda
	
	3 Minutes

